
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given by the Board of Trustees that Granger-Hunter Improvement District will 
hold a Board Meeting at 3:00 p.m. on Tuesday, June 29, 2021, at its main office located at 2888 South 3600 

West, West Valley City, Utah. Trustees and members of the public are able to attend this meeting 
electronically. 

 

Agenda   
A. GENERAL 

1. Call to order – Welcome – Report those present for the record 

2. Public Comments 

3. Consider approval of the May 18, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 

4. Discuss potential conflicts of interest 

 

B. OUR COMMUNITY 

1. Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District review 

2. Central Valley Water Reclamation Facility review 

 

C. OUR TEAM 

                    1.   Consider Approval of Member Agency Water Conservation Funding Agreement 

 

 

D. OUR OPERATIONS 

1. Consider Approval of Resolution 06-29-21 adopting Certified Tax Rate for Tax Year 2021 

2. Review & discuss Financial Report for May 2021 

3. Review & discuss Paid Invoice Report for May 2021 

4. Water maintenance update 

5. Wastewater maintenance update 

6. Water supply review 

7. Capital Projects update 

8. Consider the Award of a Construction Contract to COP Construction in the amount of 

$4,117,000.00 for the 20E: Pioneer WWPS Replacement Project. 

9. Consider the Approval of a Contract Amendment for Bowen Collins & Associates in the 

amount of $206,650.00 for additional design efforts and construction phase services for the 

20E: Pioneer WWPS Replacement. 

10. Consider the Approval of a Construction Contract to North Face Roofing, Inc. in the amount 

of $98,600.00 for the 20G-1: Building B Reroof Project. 

11. Engineering Department update 

 

E. CLOSED SESSION 

1. To discuss the character, professional competence or physical or mental health of an 

individual. 

 

F. BOARD MEMBERS INPUT, REPORTS, FOLLOW-UP ITEMS OR QUESTIONS 

 

G. CALENDAR 

1.  The next board meeting will be July 20, 2021 

 



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

1 

                                                MINUTES OF THE 

GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

BOARD MEETING  

 
The Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Granger-Hunter Improvement District (GHID) was held 

Tuesday, May 18, 2021, at 3:00 P.M. at the District office located at 2888 S. 3600 W., West Valley City, 

Utah. 

 

This meeting was conducted electronically in accordance with the Utah Open and Public Meetings Act 

(Utah Code Ann. (1953) §§ 52-4-1 et seq.) and Chapter 7.12 of the Administrative Policy and Procedures 

Manual (“Electronic Meetings”). 
 

Trustees Present: 

Debra Armstrong             Chair   

Corey Rushton              Trustee - Electronically 

Roger Nordgren              Trustee  
 

Staff Members Present: 

Jason Helm             General Manager 

Todd Marti             Assistant General Manager/District Engineer 

Troy Stout             Assistant General Manager/Chief Operating Officer 

Michelle Ketchum                       Director of Administration 

Dustin Martindale            Director of Water Systems 

Ricky Necaise             Director of Wastewater  

Victor Narteh              Director of Engineering 

Justin Gallegos            Director of Information Technology 

Austin Ballard             Controller 

Dakota Cambruzzi            Human Resource Manager 

Kristy Johnson            Executive Assistant 

Brent Rose             Legal Counsel – Clyde Snow & Sessions PC - Excused 

 

Guests: 
Keith Larson Bowen Collings & Associate  

Michael Johnson West Valley City Resident 

Phyl Warnock Keddington & Christensen, LLC - Electronically 

Adam Spackman System Administrator, GHID – Electronically 

Ian Bailey GIS Specialist, GHID - Electronically 

Idanely Orosco Customer Service Representative, GHID - Electronically 

Taylor Gomm Customer Service Representative, GHID - Electronically 

Darcy Brantly Accountant, GHID – Electronically 

Nathan Davis Bowen Collins & Associates – Electronically 

 

 
 

A copy of the exhibits referred to in these minutes is attached and incorporated by this reference. The 

exhibits are also included in the official minute books maintained by Granger-Hunter Improvement 

District.   
   
             



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

2 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

 

Swearing in of 

New Trustee, 

Roger Nordgren 

 

Approval of the 

April 20, 2021  

Board Meeting Minutes 

 

      

 

 

Conflicts of interest 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Consider Approval of 

Join Resolution  

5-18-21.1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 At 3:00 P.M. Debra Armstrong called the meeting to order and recognized all 

those present.   

 

Roger Nordgren took the Oath of Office and was sworn in by Austin Ballard.  

 

 

 

A motion to approve the Board Meeting Minutes from April 20, 2021, was 

made by Roger Nordgren, followed by a second from Debra Armstrong.  

 

The motion passed as follows; 

 

Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                Nordgren – aye 

 

There were none. 

 

At 3:04 P.M., Debra Armstrong opened the Public Hearing to consider approval 

of Joint Resolution of Taylorsville-Bennion Improvement District (Resolution 

No. 20-09) and Granger-Hunter Improvement District (Resolution 5-18-21.1) 

Approving and Adjustment of the District’s Common Boundary. Jason Helm 

discussed the resolution and provided a list of properties that will be impacted.  

Corey Rushton discussed the impact on voting districts and the importance of 

following up with the county clerk’s office.  

 

At 3:16 P.M., Corey Rushton made a motion to enter into a public comment 

session, followed by a second from Roger Nordgren.   
 

The motion passed as follows; 

 

Armstrong – aye                        Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 

 

There were no public comments.  

 

At 3:21 P.M., Roger Nordgren made a motion to close the public comment 

session, followed by a second from Debra Armstrong.   
 

The motion passed as follows; 

 

Armstrong – aye                        Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 

 

Roger Nordgren made a motion to approve Resolution No. 5-18-21.1, adopting 

the Joint Resolution of the Taylorsville-Bennion Improvement District 

(Resolution No. 20-09) and Granger-Hunter Improvement District (Resolution 

5-18-21.1) approving and adjustment of the District’s common boundary.  

Following a second from Debra Armstrong, the motion passed as follows; 

 

Armstrong – aye                        Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 

 



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OUR TEAM 

Consider Approval of 

the 2020 Audit and 

Supplementary Reports 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

OUR COMMUNITY 

Drought Mitigation 

Planning and Master 

Plan Update 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jordan Valley Water 

Conservancy District 

Review 

 

Central Valley Water 

Reclamation Facility 

Review 

 

West Valley City Update 

 

 

OUR OPERATIONS 

Review & Discuss 

Financial Report for 

April 2021 

 

 

At 3:21 P.M., Debra Armstrong made a motion to close the Public Hearing, 

followed by a second from Roger Nordgren.   
 

The motion passed as follows; 

 

Armstrong – aye                        Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 

 

Phyl Warnock of Keddington & Christensen, LLC, presented the 2020 audit 

report to the Board.  Phyl highlighted the findings which included the following: 

there were no significant difficulties, there were no disagreements with 

management, the financial statements are free of material misstatement, and to 

the best of his knowledge, there was no opinion shopping that took place. Corey 

Rushton suggested the development of a District audit review committee.    After 

a brief overview and discussion, Debra Armstrong made a motion to approve the 

2020 audit and supplementary reports as noted.  Following a second from Roger 

Nordgren, the motion passed as follows; 

 

Armstrong - aye                  Rushton - aye.                     Nordgren - aye 

 

Todd Marti presented the drought mitigation planning report and the impact it 

will have on the master plan. – See Drought Response Actions Planning attached 

to these minutes for details. 

 

Keith Larson of Bowen Collins & Associates presented the Capital Improvement 

and Infrastructure Management Plans Update.  Mr. Larson mentioned density 

and conservation as two areas of focus and discussed projections for each area. 

A brief discussion took place regarding District boundaries and city planning. – 

See Capital Improvement and Infrastructure Management Plans Update attached 

to these minutes for details.  

 

Jason Helm reviewed the Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District (JVWCD) 

Board update. - See Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District Report attached 

to these minutes for details.    

 

Mr. Helm reviewed the Central Valley Water Reclamation Facility (CVWRF) 

Board update. - See Central Valley Water Conservancy District Report attached 

to these minutes for details. 

 

Mr. Helm presented some updates from West Valley City regarding the city’s 

conservation efforts.  

 

Austin Ballard presented the year end 2020 report, highlighting the changes from 

the original, January report.  Mr. Ballard summarized the April 2021 Financial 

Report.  

 

 

 



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

4 

Review & Discuss Paid 

Invoice Report for  

April 2021  

 

Water Maintenance 

Update 

 

Wastewater 

Maintenance Update 

 

Water Supply Review 

 

 

Consider Approval of 

Design Contract with 

Bowen Collins & 

Associates for the 20A: 

3100 South to 4100 

South Redwood Road 

Sewer Project and 20I: 

3100 South to 4100 

South Redwood Road 

Water Project 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Capital Projects & 

Engineering Update 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Ballard discussed the April check report.  The April check report totaled 

$1,770,709.20 coming from five categories; Central Valley (39%), taxes, payroll 

and benefits (17%), Jordan Valley (14%), infrastructure (13%), and other (17%).   

 

Troy Stout presented the water maintenance report. – See Water Maintenance 

Board Report attached to these minutes for details. 

 

Mr. Stout presented the wastewater maintenance report.  – See Wastewater 

Maintenance Report attached to these minutes for details.  

 

Todd Marti presented the water supply report. – See Water Supply Report 

attached to these minutes for details. 

 

Mr. Marti asked the Board to consider approval of Design Contract with Bowen 

Collins & Associates in the amount of $133,000.00 for the 20A: 3100 South to 

4100 South Redwood Road Sewer Project.  After a short discussion, Debra 

Armstrong made a motion to approve the contract as noted. Following a second 

from Roger Nordgren, the motion passed as follows: 

 

Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 

 

Mr. Marti asked the Board to consider approval of Design Contract with Bowen 

Collins & Associates in the amount of $257,000.00 for the 20I: 3100 South to 

4100 South Redwood Road Water Project.  Roger Nordgren made a motion to 

approve the contract as noted. Following a second from Debra Armstrong, the 

motion passed as follows: 

 

Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 

 

Mr. Marti presented the capital projects and engineering reports. – See Capital 

Projects and Engineering Reports attached to these minutes for details.  

 

At 5:11 P.M., Roger Nordgren made a motion to enter into a closed session to 

discuss certain matters regarding acquisition or sale of real property.  Following 

a second from Debra Armstrong, the motion passed as follows; 

 

Armstrong – aye                  Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 

 

* The Board members remained present along with Jason Helm, Todd Marti 

and Troy Stout, during the closed session. 

 

At 5:33 P.M., Roger Nordgren made a motion to end the closed session and 

enter back into an open session. Following a second from Debra Armstrong, the 

motion passed as follows; 

 

Armstrong – aye                  Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 

 

 



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

5 

 

Consider Approval of 

Purchase of East 5 MG 

Steel Reservoir and Real 

Property/Easements at 

4408 South 4800 West 

 

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS 

INPUT, REPORTS, 

FOLLOW-UP ITEMS 

OR QUESTIONS 

 

ADJOURNED 

 

Mr. Marti asked the Board to consider approval of purchase of East 5 MG Steel 

Reservoir and Real Property/Easements at 4408 South 4800 West (Tank Farm) 

from Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District in the amount of $1,524,574.00.  

Roger Nordgren made a motion to approve the contract as noted. Following a 

second from Debra Armstrong, the motion passed as follows: 

 

Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Nordgren – aye 

 

Roger Nordgren inquired about current District controls in place to prevent 

cyber attacks.  A brief discussion took place regarding some of the safeguards 

and up-to-date staff training.   

 

 

Inasmuch as all agenda items have been satisfied, Debra Armstrong made a 

motion to adjourn the meeting.  Following a second from Roger Nordgren, the 

motion passed as follows and the meeting adjourned at 5:49 P.M.  

 

Armstrong – aye                      Rushton – aye                      Nordgren – aye 

 

 

Debra K. Armstrong, Chair 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

 

Austin Ballard, Clerk 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

 



Jordan Valley Water Conservancy Update– June 2021



Jordan Valley Water Conservancy Update– June 2021



Central Valley Water Reclamation Update– June 2021



Central Valley Water Reclamation Update– June 2021



Central Valley Water Reclamation Update– June 2021



Central Valley Water Reclamation Update– June 2021



Central Valley Water Reclamation Update– June 2021



MA CONS FUNDING AGREEMENT_GHID_K3398_CB.doc 

1 

MEMBER AGENCY WATER CONSERVATION FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement is made and entered into as of July 14, 2021 (the “Effective 

Date”), by and between the Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District, a Utah local 

district (“District”), and Granger-Hunter Improvement District, a Utah local district 

(“Member Agency”). 

 

RECITALS: 

A. The District desires to provide funding assistance to the Member Agency 

for a water conservation project within the Member Agency’s retail service area 

relating to leak detection equipment, leak detection services, water-saving 

devices, and a public information campaign (collectively, the “Project”); 

B. The Member Agency wishes to obtain funding assistance from the District 

and represents that it has met the eligibility requirements; and, 

C. The Member Agency has submitted to the District a proposal outlining the 

Project and requesting funding assistance, and the District is willing to provide 

funding assistance, consistent with the terms of this Agreement. 

 

TERMS: 

 The parties agree as follows: 

1. Project Description.  A description of the Project to be completed by the 

Member Agency is set forth in attached Exhibit A. 

 
 
 
  



MA CONS FUNDING AGREEMENT_GHID_K3398_CB.doc 

2 

2. Project Schedule.  The Project shall be completed by the Member Agency 

in accordance with the schedule set forth in attached Exhibit A, notwithstanding any 

other provision or Exhibit of this Agreement to the contrary. 

3. Project Administration and Correspondence. 

(a) The person designated to administer the Project and to act as the 

chief contact for the Member Agency is: 

   Michelle Ketchum, Director of Administrative Services 
   Granger-Hunter Improvement District 
   2888 South 3600 West 
   P.O. Box 701110 
   West Valley City, Utah 84170 
 

(b) The person designated to represent the District in connection with 

this Agreement is: 

   Courtney Brown, Conservation Programs Manager 
   Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District 
   8275 South 1300 West 
   West Jordan, Utah 84088 
 

4. Eligibility for Project Funding.  The Member Agency represents it has: 

(a) Adopted, by formal resolution, a water conservation goal of 

reducing per capita water use in its service area by at least twenty-five percent (25%) by 

year 2025, using year 2000 as a baseline year for comparison purposes; and, 

(b) Complied with the Utah Water Conservation Plan Act, Utah Code 

Ann. § 73-10-32, and has filed a water conservation plan with the State of Utah, Division 

of Water Resources. 

5. Member Agency Responsibilities and Ownership. 

(a) The Member Agency and/or its representatives shall provide all 

labor, services, supplies, and materials to implement and complete the Project, 



MA CONS FUNDING AGREEMENT_GHID_K3398_CB.doc 

3 

including but not limited to administration, promotion, marketing, management, data 

collection, analysis, and reporting. 

(b) All materials and supplies necessary to implement and complete 

the Project shall be the exclusive property of the Member Agency. The District shall 

have no ownership, right, title, security interest, or other interest in any Project facilities, 

materials, or supplies, nor in any rights, duties, or responsibilities for operation or 

maintenance thereof. 

(c) The Member Agency shall comply with all applicable federal, state, 

and local requirements to implement and complete the Project. 

(d) The Member Agency shall be solely responsible for the 

performance of its staff and/or representatives in complying with the terms of this 

Agreement, and for the proper allocation of funds received from the District for 

implementing and completing the Project. 

(e) The Member Agency shall timely prepare and submit invoices and 

reports to the District as further described herein. 

(f) The Member Agency shall timely pay its share of the costs of 

the Project. 

6. Cost Estimate and Funding. 

(a) The funds to be provided by the District to the Member Agency 

shall not exceed Fifty-Four Thousand Eight Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($54,800.00). 

(b) The costs for the Project to be paid by the District and by the 

Member Agency are set forth in attached Exhibit B. All costs greater than those shown 

in Exhibit B, which are necessary to implement and complete the Project pursuant to 



MA CONS FUNDING AGREEMENT_GHID_K3398_CB.doc 

4 

this Agreement, if any, shall be paid by the Member Agency. The Member Agency shall 

pay no less than twenty percent (20%) of the total cost of the Project. 

7. Invoicing Requirements. 

(a) The Member Agency shall invoice the District on a quarterly basis 

pursuant to the following schedule: 

QUARTERLY BILLING PERIOD INVOICE DUE DATE 

January 1-March 31 April 20 

April 1-June 30 July 20 

July 1-September 30 October 20 

October 1-December 31 January 20 

 
(b) Invoices shall be sufficiently detailed to allow for review and 

approval by the District and each shall include the following: a cover letter indicating the 

billing period; a detailed breakdown of the costs submitted for reimbursement, including 

man hours and billing rates; documentation supporting the invoice, such as invoices for 

supplies, consulting services, etc.; and, an accounting of the amount(s) previously 

invoiced with respect to the total funding amount provided under this Agreement. The 

final invoice for the Project, or a component of the Project, shall provide information and 

documentation sufficient to demonstrate that it has been completed in accordance with 

the requirements and conditions of this Agreement. 

8. Periodic Meetings.  The District, at its discretion, may request periodically 

a meeting for review of the Member Agency’s progress toward implementation and 

completion of the Project, including an initial meeting prior to commencement of 

the Project. 



MA CONS FUNDING AGREEMENT_GHID_K3398_CB.doc 

5 

9. Reporting Requirements. 

(a) Beginning with 2021, and for five (5) consecutive years following 

completion of the Project, the Member Agency shall provide to the District an annual 

calculation of per capita water use within its retail service area. The calculation shall 

include an estimate of the population served and the volume of water delivered. This 

information shall be provided to the District by February 15 following the specific 

calendar year for which the report is made. 

(b) If records are available, the Member Agency shall provide to the 

District, on or before July 1, 2022, the information requested in subparagraph 9(a) for 

each calendar year between 2000 and 2021. 

(c) Within forty-five (45) days following termination of this Agreement 

and prior to final payment, the Member Agency shall submit to the District a final, written 

report, including a summary of the Project; problems/challenges encountered; customer 

responses; Project benefits; a breakdown of final Project costs; and, an evaluation 

regarding the effectiveness of the Project. 

(d) If a retail customer of the Member Agency receives and installs a 

water-conserving device, fixture, or equipment as part of the Project, the Member 

Agency shall provide to the District the customer’s water use information for three (3) 

full years prior to and following installation of the device, fixture, or equipment. 

(e) The provisions of this paragraph 9 shall survive expiration or 

termination of the term of the Agreement. 

10. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date, 

and it shall expire without further notice or condition on June 30, 2022, except all 



MA CONS FUNDING AGREEMENT_GHID_K3398_CB.doc 

6 

reporting obligations required by this Agreement shall survive its expiration or earlier 

termination for five (5)  consecutive years. 

11. Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement upon sixty (60) 

days written notice to the other party. 

12. Indemnification.  The Member Agency shall indemnify, hold harmless, and 

defend the District, its Trustees, officers, employees, and agents against any claim or 

asserted liability arising out of the Member Agency’s actions, either willful or negligent, 

or the actions of the Member Agency’s officers, employees, or agents, in providing 

labor, services, supplies, and materials pursuant to this Agreement, including any 

losses related to any claim made, whether or not court action is filed, and will include 

attorney fees and administrative and overhead costs related to, or arising out of, such 

claim or asserted liability. 

13. Notices.  All notices, requests, demands, and other communications 

required or allowed by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be given by personal 

delivery or by certified mail, with return receipt requested, to the following addresses or 

to such other addresses as the parties may designate in writing: 

  If to District, to: 

   Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District 
   Attn:  General Manager 
   8215 South 1300 West 
   West Jordan, Utah 84088 
 
  If to Member Agency, to: 

   Granger-Hunter Improvement District 
   Attn: Michele Ketchum, Director of Administrative Services  
   2888 South 3600 West 

P.O. Box 701110 
   West Valley City, Utah 84170 



MA CONS FUNDING AGREEMENT_GHID_K3398_CB.doc 

7 

  Notice shall be effective on the date it is received by the other party. 

14. Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument 

signed by both parties. 

15. Binding Nature.  All of the grants, covenants, terms, provision, and 

conditions in this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 

successors and permitted assigns of the parties. 

16. Assignment.  The Member Agency shall not assign this Agreement or any 

of its rights under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the District. 

The District may assign this Agreement and/or any of its rights under this Agreement. 

17. Whole Agreement.  This Agreement, including exhibits, constitutes the 

entire agreement of the parties and supersedes all prior understandings, 

representations, or agreement of the parties regarding the subject matter in 

this document. 

18. Authorization.  The Member Agency represents and warrants that it has 

authority to enter into this Agreement. In addition, each individual executing this 

Agreement does hereby represent and warrant that he or she has been duly authorized 

to sign this Agreement in the capacity and for the entities shown. 

19. Miscellaneous.  The parties shall perform those acts and/or sign all 

documents required by this Agreement and which may be reasonably necessary to 

effectuate the terms of this Agreement. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]



 

MA CONS FUNDING AGREEMENT_GHID_K3398_CB.doc 

 
 
 
 
 
Dated:       
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Barton A. Forsyth 
Clerk 
 
 

“District”: 
 
Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District 
 
 
By:       
 Corey L. Rushton 
 Its Chair, Board of Trustees 
 
 
Address: 8215 South 1300 West 
  West Jordan, Utah 84088 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Dated:       
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
 

“Member Agency”: 
 
Granger-Hunter Improvement District 
 
 
By:       
 
Its:       
 
 
Address: 2888 South 3600 West 
  P.O. Box 701110 
                      West Valley City, Utah 84170 
 

 
 



 

MA CONS FUNDING AGREEMENT_GHID_K3398_CB.doc 

EXHIBIT A 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND SCHEDULE 
 

GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
Measure 1: Leak Detection Equipment for Hydrants 

 

Description: In 2020, Granger-Hunter Improvement District (GHID) received grant 
assistance from JVWCD to hire a consultant to locate leaks on over 100 miles of water 
pipe, a quarter of the entire system. The leak detection survey identified a total of 203 
leaks with an estimated loss of 133 gallons per minute.  All the leaks were repaired, but 
GHID crews noted that 101 of the 203 leaks were found on fire hydrants. Many of these 
leaks could not be detected without sensitive listening devices meant for leak detection. 
There are approximately 3,900 public fire hydrants and 1,000 to 1,500 private fire 
hydrants within the GHID service area. 

 
GHID would like to purchase a Bmic system and two Tmic systems for their own crews 
to use with fire hydrant inspections. Both types are portable microphones, but a Bmic 
uses a specialized ground microphone while a Tmic has a sensor tip that can be 
connected to a rod and is placed directly on the pipe or hydrant.  Not only can this 
equipment be used to find leaks on the remaining hydrants in the GHID service area, but 
it can also be used to ensure hydrant valves are fully closed after inspections performed 
by the fire department and contractors. 

 
Funding Tier: Tier 2 

 
 

Schedule for implementation: 

• August 2021 – Obtain quotes and purchase leak detection equipment. 

• September 2021 – Train staff on how to use the leak detection equipment 

effectively. 

• December 2021 – Track leaks detected on hydrants and submit report to 

JVWCD.  

 

Cost: 

• JVWCD 60%: $3,600 

• GHID 40%: $2,400 

• Total: $6,000 

 
 
Measure 2: Water System Leak Detection Project 
 



 

MA CONS FUNDING AGREEMENT_GHID_K3398_CB.doc 

Description: In 2016 GHID participated in a Water Audit Pilot Training exercise which 
confirmed water loss but did not pinpoint where the loss was occurring throughout the 
system. Since that time, GHID has taken steps to improve infrastructure, billing 
procedures, and replace aging meters. In 2020, JVWCD grant funding was used to 
locate leaks on a portion of the water system.  
 
This measure is a continuation of the 2020 project involving the use of the latest acoustic 
and sonic leak detection technology to discover and locate leaks on a different portion of 
the system so they can be repaired. The work will be completed by a consultant. 
 

Funding Tier: Tier 2 
 

Schedule for implementation: 

• January 2022 – Award contract to the most effective leak detection company. 

• February - June 2022 – Assist leak detection company in providing information 

and navigating the system, obtain results, and repair leaks. 

 

Cost: 

• JVWCD 60%: $48,000 

• GHID 40%: $32,000 

• Total: $80,000 

 
 
Measure 3: Push Brooms 

 

Description: This project involves giving away push brooms to customers who utilize 
the GHID customer portal where they can watch their daily water usage. The purpose of 
a push broom is to promote sweeping off driveways and sidewalks rather than spraying 
them off with a hose. Customers will be given a broom when they come in to the GHID 
office after signing up for the customer portal offered on the website. GHID staff will 
explain the importance of water conservation and the many ways to assist in 
conservation efforts. 

 
Funding Tier: Tier 3 
 

Schedule for implementation:  

• August 2021 – Purchase give-away push brooms. 

▪ Begin advertising the Customer Portal/Free Push Broom program on 

billing statements, GHID Website, Facebook page, and a display in the 

GHID lobby. 

▪ Begin distributing push brooms to qualified customers while supplies last. 

 

Cost: 



 

MA CONS FUNDING AGREEMENT_GHID_K3398_CB.doc 

• JVWCD 40%: $1,200 

• GHID 60%: $1,800 

• Total: $3,000 

 
 
Measure 4: Conservation Calendars 
 

Description: Public awareness efforts will include production of a 2022 conservation 

calendar with waterwise tips, promotion of conservation programs, Utah Water Savers, 

and community outreach events. 

 

Funding Tier: Tier 3 

 

Schedule for implementation:  

• September 2021 – Design conservation calendar 

• October 2021 – Conservation calendar ready for print 

• November 2021 – Conservation calendar available to hand out 

 

Cost: 

• JVWCD 40%: $1,200 

• GHID 60%: $1,800 

• Total: $3,000 

 

Measure 5: Conservation Program Advertisements 
 

Description: This measure involves printing and distributing a welcome packet that 

includes conservation information and devices for new customers. Specifically, the 

packet includes a booklet with information on how to use the customer web portal so 

residents know how much water they are using hour by hour. The booklet also shows 

customers how to check for leaks and avoid frozen pipes that can break and lead to 

water loss. The packet also includes a water-saving device and information about where 

to apply for Utah Water Savers programs. 

 

Funding Tier: Tier 3 

 

Schedule for implementation:  

• November 2021 – Obtain quotes for printing 

• December 2021 – Finished booklet ready for distribution  

• January 2022 – Begin distribution 

 

Cost: 

• JVWCD 40%: $800 

• GHID 60%: $1,200 

• Total: $2,000 



 

MA CONS FUNDING AGREEMENT_GHID_K3398_CB.doc 

EXHIBIT B 
 

PROJECT COSTS 
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY 
MEMBER 
AGENCY 

COST SHARE 

JVWCD 
COST SHARE 

TOTAL 
COST 

EMPLOYEE WAGES (including 
benefits) 
 
       - Employee 1 (name) 
 
       - Employee 2 (name) 

  

   

EQUIPMENT 
 
       - Item A Leak Detection Devices 
 
       - Item B Push Brooms 
 
       - Item C 

Each 
 

$12.00 

3 
 

250 

$2,400.00 
 

$1,800.00 

$3,600.00 
 

$1,200.00 

$6,000.00 
 

$3,000.00 

SUPPLIES/MATERIALS 
 
       - Item A Calendars 
 
       - Item B Advertisements 
 
       - Item C 

  
$1,800.00 

 
$1,200.00 

$1,200.00 
 

$800.00 

$3,000.00 
 

$2,000.00 

CONTRACTUAL 
 
       - Professional Consulting Services 
 
       - Contractor 
 
       - Other: Leak Detection Services 

  

$32,000.00 $48,000.00 
 

$80,000.00 

OTHER (please specify)      

TOTAL PROJECT COST ESTIMATE   $39,200.00 $54,800.00 $94,000.00 

 



 
 

 
 

2888 South 3600 West   •   P.O. Box 701110   •   West Valley City, Utah 84170-1110 •   Phone (801) 968-3551   •   Fax (801) 968-5467 •   www.ghid.org 

 

Jason Helm, P.E., General Manager, CEO 

Todd Marti, MPA, P.E., Asst. General Manager/District Engineer 

M. Troy Stout, P.E., Asst. General Manager/COO 

 

 

 
 

Debra K. Armstrong, Chair 

Corey L. Rushton, Trustee 

Roger Nordgren, Trustee 

 
 

 
 

 
June 24, 2021 

 
To the Granger-Hunter Improvement District (District) Board of Trustees 
 
As you are aware, each year the District is required to adopt a “certified property tax rate” 
if it wishes to have property tax collected on its behalf. Salt Lake County and the State 
Tax Commission calculate what the certified tax rate will be. If the District does not wish 
to increase or otherwise change the tax revenue amount, and only wish to “remain whole” 
(collecting the same amount of taxes received during the previous year, adjusted to add 
any new growth), then the District simply adopts whatever rate the State and County 
calculated that is appropriate to keep revenues flat when compared to the previous year.  
 
This year’s certified rate has been calculated as 0.000414 on a total value of 
$9,104,272,725, which results in a requested revenue amount of $3,769,169.  This 
amount is lower than the total Property Tax Revenue line in the District’s 2020 budget of 
$4,255,000, the difference allocated to Motor Vehicle and Personal Property taxes. In 
2020 the rate was 0.000450 on a valuation of $8,219,695,992 for a total requested 
revenue of $3,698,863. The increase in requested revenue from 2020 to 2021 is $70,306, 
which is from new growth during the past year. 
 
However, if the District wishes to increase property tax collections in the future, then it 
must have the State and County calculate a different rate that provides the requested 
amount, and the District must go through the “Truth in Taxation” (TNT) process. This 
process must begin prior to adopting next year’s budget in December. If it is determined 
that that the District should raise property tax revenues, the following actions must take 
place prior to the adopting the 2022 Budget. 

1. On or before October 1st, the District must notify the county legislative body of the 
date, time and place of the public hearing where the budget will be discussed. This 
date has already been sent to the county on June 2, 2021, to be put on the outgoing 
county property tax notifications. 

2. On or before October 19th, the District in a public meeting, must have a separate 
agenda item and state (1) intent to increase property taxes, (2) dollar amount of 
increase, (3) purpose for increase and (4) approximate percentage of increase. 

3. On before October 26th, the district must notify every parcel owner (1) Value of the 
property, (2) current year tax on the property, (3) estimated tax on property with 
proposed increase, (4) date, time and place of public hearing and (5) statement 
from 59-2-913(3)(c)(iv) (see appendix for example of form). 

4. Two weeks before the public hearing notify public with a newspaper advertisement 
and post on the public notice websites. Notice must follow TNT format from the 
Certified Tax Rate System. 



 
 

5. One week before the public hearing the same advertisement from action 4 must be 
taken. All copies of newspaper advertisements must be sent in to county 
auditor tax commission. 

6. 2 weeks after the 1st newspaper advertisement, the public hearing must be held. 
The only other hearings allowed on the same day are budget, fee and enterprise 
fund hearings. Any meetings on the same day must end before the TNT hearing. 
In the District’s case, it has set a preliminary date of December 14th as the public 
hearing date for the 2022 Budget. The TNT hearing could be done on the same 
date. 

7. After the public hearing, the property tax increase may be adopted, Resolution (PT-
800C) must be sent in to tax commission before rate can be finalized (See 
appendix). 

 
Because taxable property values increased nearly 11% from 2020 to 2021, keeping last 
year’s rate of 0.000450 would have resulted in the District requesting over $327,000 more 
in tax revenues than last year, which represents more than just population growth. The 
District’s maximum allowed rate, by law, is 0.00080.  If the District were to take the 
maximum amount at this time, the anticipated revenue would be approximately 
$7,283,000, or $3,513,000 (93%) more than what is currently being levied. This can be 
an advantageous situation for the District when issuing bonds, as rating agencies view 
this margin as a strength. It represents a revenue source the District could turn to in order 
to repay new debt. 
 
Property taxes continue to be scrutinized by the State Legislature and some of the 
District’s citizens. There are those who believe the District should not be collecting 
property taxes because it already charges an availability fee and water and wastewater 
fees. I would like to briefly review what each of those fees helps to pay for and why it is 
appropriate to collect property taxes. 
 
The availability fee (currently $13.00 per month for residential water connections) is a 
fixed portion of the monthly water bill which funds many of the costs associated with 
having culinary water “available” at a home or business. Even if a customer does not use 
any water during the month, the District still must have the system ready and water 
available in the event the customer decides to turn on the tap. There are fixed costs for 
having the system in place, properly maintaining it and having contracts in place so that 
adequate water supplies are available to meet the potential demand on the system. The 
availability fee helps pay for such items as storage facilities, waterlines, meters, fire 
protection, system maintenance and upgrades, regulatory costs and overhead expenses 
relating to the water system. Since the District experiences inflationary impacts just like 
other businesses and individuals, it must occasionally increase the availability fee to 
continue to provide basic services. (The availability fee was last increased, from $12.00 
per month to $13.00, in 2015.) 
 
The water rate (which changed to a tiered system in 2018) covers most of the costs 
relating to the water itself. This includes water purchases, water generation from wells, 
utilities, water quality monitoring, maintenance and other variable costs. 



 
 

 
The wastewater rate does not have an availability fee component. The monthly 
wastewater fee covers most of the cost of infrastructure and operations of the wastewater 
system, including most expenses for the District’s proportionate share of Central Valley 
Water Reclamation Facility (CVWRF). There is an additional $5.00 per month charge on 
wastewater bills to help fund the renovation of existing infrastructure and construction of 
new infrastructure at the CVWRF plant. 
 
While the water rate and availability fee cover most of the expense of the water system, 
and the wastewater fee covers most of the expense of wastewater operations, there are 
some remaining expenses that are not covered by those revenues. The District utilizes 
property tax revenues to help cover these expenses. 
 
The District currently has two outstanding bond issues. Even though both are called 
“Revenue Bonds” (meaning their repayment is guaranteed by the revenues from water 
sales and wastewater service), the property tax is used primarily for the retirement of 
outstanding debt, as the tax provides a stable dependable revenue source. Property tax 
may also be used to cover operating and maintenance costs as mentioned above. It helps 
cover those costs for which customers may not directly be charged, such as providing and 
maintaining fire hydrants throughout the service area.  The District incurs significant costs 
to install, maintain, and periodically replace those hydrants, including the cost of water 
that is lost through maintenance flushing, hydrant testing on a regular basis and any water 
used in actual fire suppression efforts. The cost of these services cannot be charged 
directly to specific customers, but instead is an overall cost of operations and providing 
those services to District’s customers. Property taxes may similarly be used for expenses 
relating to the wastewater system. The benefit of having some of the District’s revenues 
come from property tax is that the it can cover a portion of the costs incurred to have the 
systems ready at any given moment, even if it didn’t sell any water or collect any 
wastewater. The District seeks to minimize outstanding debt so that most of the taxes and 
fees can be reinvested into the water and wastewater systems, keeping them functioning 
well and in compliance with applicable state and federal regulations. 
 
It is requested that the Board consider and approve Resolution 06-29-21, Adoption 
of Certified Tax Rate for the Tax Year 2021, adopting a rate of 0.000414. 
 
Thank you very much for your support. 
 
Austin Ballard, CPA 
Controller/District Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Appendix 
 

 
 



 
 

 



 
 

 
 

2888 South 3600 West   •   P.O. Box 701110   •   West Valley City, Utah 84170-1110 •   Phone (801) 968-3551   •   Fax (801) 968-5467 •   www.ghid.org 

 

Jason Helm, P.E., General Manager, CEO 

Todd Marti, MPA, P.E., Asst. General Manager/District Engineer 

M. Troy Stout, P.E., Asst. General Manager/COO 

 

 

 
 

Debra K. Armstrong, Chair 

Corey L. Rushton, Trustee 

Roger Nordgren, Trustee 

 
 

 

 

Resolution of the Board of Trustees 
 

 

Resolution No. 06-29-21 
 

Adoption of Certified Tax Rate for Tax Year 2021 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Granger-Hunter Improvement District’s Board of Trustees: 
 

1. The Granger-Hunter Improvement District will adopt, as its certified tax rate for tax year 
2021, the rate as calculated by the Salt Lake County Auditor. 

 
2. This calculated rate is 0.000414 

 
3. This resolution shall take effect upon approval by the Board. 

 
 
 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this 29th day of June, 2021. 
 
 
     __________________________________________ 
     Debra K. Armstrong 
     Chair of the Board of Trustees 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Austin Ballard 
District Clerk 
 
 

 

 
 
 



     Page 1 of 3

REVENUES

Amended

Actual Budget % of Actual Budget % of

5/31/2020 2020 Budget 5/31/2021 2021 Budget

REVENUES

Operating Revenues:

Water Sales $ 5,048,152   $ 19,728,000 25.6% $ 4,616,206   $ 19,884,000 23.2%

Sewer Service Charges 4,039,029   11,807,000 34.2% 4,013,175   11,677,000 34.4%

Central Valley Assessmt 1,121,849   2,700,000   41.5% 1,124,399   2,700,000   41.6%

Engineering Fees 2,200          6,000          36.7% 4,727          7,000          67.5%

Connection fees 20,400        34,000        60.0% 11,134        40,000        27.8%

Inspection 30,771        49,000        62.8% 25,690        55,000        46.7%

Delinquent/Turn-on Fees 8,040          35,000        23.0% 2,090          35,000        6.0%

Conservation Grant -                  68,500        0.0% 2,446          41,300        5.9%

Total Operating Revenue 10,270,441 34,427,500 29.8% 9,799,867   34,439,300 28.5%

Property Tax Revenue:

Property Tax 9,121          3,400,000   0.3% (22,006)       3,400,000   -0.6%

Motor Vehicle 69,847        250,000      27.9% 89,806        250,000      35.9%

Personal Property 239,957      325,000      73.8% 289,065      325,000      88.9%

Delinquent Tax/Interest 36,294        80,000        45.4% 39,696        80,000        49.6%

Tax Increment for RDA -                  200,000      0.0% -                  200,000      0.0%

Total Property Tax Revenue 355,219      4,255,000   8.3% 396,561      4,255,000   9.3%

Non-operating Revenue:

Impact Fees - Water 403,130      300,000      134.4% 199,211      450,000      44.3%

Impact Fees - Sewer 224,991      150,000      150.0% 107,788      200,000      53.9%

Interest 183,937      525,000      35.0% 60,532        250,000      24.2%

Sale of Surplus Equipment 6,037          59,000        10.2% 1,209          40,000        3.0%

Other 50,235        120,000      41.9% 61,932        120,000      51.6%

Total Non-operating Revenue 868,330      1,154,000   75.2% 430,672      1,060,000   40.6%

Total Revenues $ 11,493,990 $ 39,836,500 28.9% $ 10,627,100 $ 39,754,300 26.7%

Percent of Year Completed: 41.67%



Page 2 of 3

 EXPENSES

Amended

Actual Budget % of Actual Budget % of

5/31/2020 2020 Budget 5/31/2021 2021 Budget

EXPENSES

Payroll Wages:

Salaries & Wages $ 2,299,918   $ 5,028,072     45.7% $ 1,806,283     $ 4,893,240      36.9%

Overtime Wages 47,087        175,000        26.9% 37,298          175,000         21.3%

On-call Pay 26,331        71,280          36.9% 25,677          71,280           36.0%

Incentive Pay 5,727          15,000          38.2% 4,955            15,000           33.0%

Vehicle Allowance 3,392          9,000            37.7% 2,121            9,000             23.6%

Other/OPEB 123,298      250,000        49.3% -                    250,000         0.0%

Clothing Allowance -                  22,000          0.0% -                    21,450           0.0%

   Total Payroll Wages 2,505,753   5,570,352     45.0% 1,876,334     5,434,970      34.5%

Payroll Benefits:

State Retirement Plan 351,007      955,045        36.8% 327,947        947,920         34.6%

401K Plan 273,888      598,677        45.7% 216,859        594,210         36.5%

Health/Dental Insurance 685,350      1,670,320     41.0% 783,166        1,687,023      46.4%

Medicare 34,205        73,547          46.5% 26,729          72,730           36.8%

Workers Compensation Ins 3,814          40,000          9.5% 15,336          40,000           38.3%

Life/LTD/LTC Insurance 35,482        75,000          47.3% 46,328          75,000           61.8%

State Unemployment 3,043          5,000            60.9% -                    10,000           0.0%

   Total Payroll Benefits 1,386,789   3,417,589     40.6% 1,416,365     3,426,883      41.3%

Operations & Maintenance:

Repair & Replacement 137,743      655,560        21.0% 248,886        663,900         37.5%

Building & Grounds 35,930        82,450          43.6% 31,469          82,450           38.2%

Vehicle Maint & Fuel 70,496        189,431        37.2% 76,740          168,680         45.5%

Vehicle Lease 92,746        254,600        36.4% 109,875        225,800         48.7%

Tools & Supplies 20,072        73,400          27.3% 26,038          89,750           29.0%

Water Purchases 2,228,956   11,010,400   20.2% 2,410,230     10,717,260    22.5%

Treatment Chemicals 5,914          41,300          14.3% 18,412          41,300           44.6%

Water Lab Testing Fees 15,207        76,750          19.8% 6,600            66,500           9.9%

Utilities 169,624      982,000        17.3% 218,269        905,000         24.1%

  Total O&M 2,776,688   13,365,891   20.8% 3,146,519     12,960,640    24.3%

CVWRF:

Facility Operations 1,413,776   4,494,860     31.5% 2,066,434     5,517,471      37.5%

Project Betterments 133,425      1,360,725     9.8% 564,068        1,748,831      32.3%

Interceptor Monitoring (2,967)         -                    0.0% -                    -                     0.0%

Pre-treatment Field 96,989        283,675        34.2% 128,825        286,024         45.0%

Laboratory 73,706        227,418        32.4% 111,284        251,563         44.2%

CVW Debt Service 820,178      1,954,999     42.0% 1,095,740     3,311,053      33.1%

  Total CVWRF $ 2,535,107   8,321,677     30.5% $ 3,966,351     $ 11,114,942    35.7%



Page 3 of 3

Actual Budget % of Actual Budget % of

5/31/2020 2020 Budget 5/31/2021 2021 Budget

General & Administrative:

Office Supplies/Printing $ 7,796          $ 33,940          23.0% $ 8,733            $ 27,840           31.4%

Postage & Mailing 49,920        159,500        31.3% 48,546          155,550         31.2%

General Administrative 15,889        61,000          26.0% 14,488          133,810         10.8%

Computer Supplies 114,617      494,243        23.2% 162,553        471,167         34.5%

General Insurance 264,218      439,612        60.1% 294,192        360,595         81.6%

Utilities 27,575        95,500          28.9% 27,994          95,500           29.3%

Telephone 39,808        120,200        33.1% 32,635          113,600         28.7%

Training & Education 35,251        133,200        26.5% 18,930          97,475           19.4%

Safety 23,300        39,620          58.8% 12,277          40,620           30.2%

Legal fees 4,103          44,000          9.3% 16,915          54,000           31.3%

Auditing Fees 12,000        12,000          100.0% 12,000          12,000           100.0%

Professional Consulting 13,739        97,400          14.1% 66,395          347,400         19.1%

Public Relations/Conservation 3,592          55,000          6.5% 53,742          98,500           54.6%

Banking & Bonding 119,024      330,900        36.0% 120,443        332,900         36.2%

Admin Contingency -                  180,000        0.0% -                    180,000         0.0%

  Total General Administrative 730,832      2,296,115     31.8% 889,843        2,520,957      35.3%

Total Operating Expenses 9,935,169   32,971,624   30.1% 11,295,412   35,458,392    31.9%

0.0%

Net Operating Revenues 1,558,821   $ 6,864,876     22.7% (668,312)       4,295,908      -15.6%

Indirect Operating Expenses:

Depreciation -                  7,700,000     0.0% 3,295,785     8,000,000      41.2%

RDA Pass-Through -                  200,000        0.0% -                    200,000         0.0%

  Total Indirect Operating Exp -                  $ 7,900,000     0.0% 3,295,785     8,200,000      40.2%

Equipment and Infrastructure:

Infrastructure 1,093,751   15,746,152   6.9% 1,392,966     21,304,500    6.5%

New Vehicles & Equipment 161,851      409,747        39.5% 29,832          625,810         4.8%

  Total Equipment 1,255,602   16,155,899   7.8% 1,422,798     21,930,310    6.5%

Debt Service:

Bond Interest and Fees 21,971        244,995        9.0% 36,781          207,388         17.7%

Bond Principal Pmt ('12 Bond) 288,000      288,000        100.0% 295,000        311,000         94.9%

Bond Princ Pmt (2019 DEQ) 435,525      310,000        140.5% 532,000        532,000         100.0%

  Total Debt Service 745,496      842,995        88.4% 863,781        1,050,388      82.2%

Total Equip & Debt Service 2,001,098   $ 16,998,894   11.8% 2,286,579     22,980,698    9.9%

Net Revenues after Deprec, (442,277)     $ (18,034,018)  2.5% (6,250,676)    (26,884,790)   23.2%

Infrastructure and Debt

Add back Depreciation -                  7,700,000     0.0% 3,295,785     8,000,000      41.2%

Add back Infrastructure 1,093,751   15,746,152   6.9% 1,392,966     21,304,500    6.5%

Net Revenues, net of Infr & Depr $ 651,474      $ 5,412,134     12.0% $ (1,561,925)    $ 2,419,710      -64.6%





















































Water Systems Update 

2021 Data:

▪ Three Breaks in May

▪ 22 Breaks Year-to-Date

▪ 30% Below YTD Four-Year 
Average 

▪ May Slightly Below Average of 
3.75

Long Term Break Rate Target 
Development Considerations:

▪ Level of Service Targets / 
Disruption of Service Rates

▪ Water Quality Impacts

▪ Water Rate Impacts

▪ Claim Exposure

▪ System Reliability 



Water Maintenance Update 

Waterline breaks and leaks totaled three breaks and three service leaks in May 2021.  

Water Breaks and Leaks Four Year Average Trends

The District’s breaks and leaks dropped below the four-year trendline for May 
2021.



Water Systems Maintenance 

2021 Data:

▪ 85 Corrective Valve Work Orders Completed to-Date; 13 Completed in 
May; 33 Created to-Date; 49 Currently Remaining Open. 

▪ The valve maintenance crew has completed 1433 planned valve work 
orders to date. Planned valve maintenance is trending in the right 
direction, at the end of April we were below our target by 31%. 0

20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200

Corrective Valve Maintenance

84 of 72             17.24%

0

500
1000
1500

2000
2500

3000

3500
4000

4500
5000

Planned Valve Maintenance

1433 of 1925          -25.6%



Water Systems Maintenance 

2021 Data:

▪ Valve crews have located 10 valves off to date. All valves found off have 
been turned back on.

▪ Corrective valve work orders completed to date is 85. The goal is to 
have the valve repaired or replaced within 10 days from the creation of 
the work order. The corrective valve work order completed efficiency 
graph shows our progress and efficiency.  In the month of May 2 valve 
work orders were completed within 10 days, and 11 valves were not 
completed within our goal of 10 days.

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Valves Found Off Rate

10 of 10        0%

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Valve Work Order Efficiency

Completed Within 10 Days Not Completed Within 10 Days



Water Systems Maintenance 

2021 Data:

▪ The fire hydrant crew has completed 1519 planned fire hydrant 
maintenance inspections to date. We expected to have completed 
about  1440 inspections by the end of May 2021. We are back on track 
of our target and should keep the momentum moving forward.   

▪ Fire hydrant work order efficiency during the month of May consisted 
mainly of fire hydrants that needed minor repairs reported by the 
planned fire hydrant inspections. We did replace a couple hydrants that 
were damaged beyond repair.  

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

Planned Fire Hydrant Maintenance

1519 of 1440          5.49%

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Fire Hydrant Work Order Efficiency

Completed within 10 days Not completed within 10 days



Water Systems Maintenance 

2021 Data:

▪ As of May, we have had 24 hydrants tagged out of service for repair. We 
currently still have 2 hydrants out of service, we are waiting on parts 
from the vendor to repair the two remaining hydrants. 

▪ May is typically when crews start the annual fire hydrant Plug-Hug and 
painting program. However, we did not start in May due to crews 
catching up on fire hydrant inspections and valve maintenance 
inspections. Also, we are in the process of working with TNEMEC for a 
new paint coating system that should be a better-quality coating than 
used in previous years. We plan on moving forward during the month 
of June with our fire hydrant painting program.    

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Fire Hydrants Coated To-Date with Target

0 of 87                -100%

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Hydrant Effectiveness Out of Service Rate

24 of 10             140%



Water Systems Maintenance 

2021 Data:

▪ In April, the water operation maintenance group implemented a new 
plan based off the water system maintenance plan. These are 
recommendations based off manufacture guidelines for the equipment 
that we use at our water sites. These include daily, weekly, monthly, 
quarterly, and yearly services and/or maintenance on the equipment.  

▪ 141 of 208 daily routine scheduled maintenance inspections were 
completed in May. We were short handed for a week during May with 
an employee on vacation which equates to 52 daily inspections, crews 
were also called upon to do grounds maintenance duties at our water 
sites. i.e., turning on sprinkler at all water sites, checking to make sure 
sprinklers are working correctly, minor sprinkler repairs and office clean 
up. 

▪ All the Weekly routine maintenance tasks have been completed  in line 
with manufacturer recommendations for the month of May. 

0
200
400
600
800

1000
1200
1400
1600
1800
2000

Daily Scheduled Routine Maintenance

192 OF 273               -29.7%

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Weekly Scheduled Routine Maintenance

82 of 82             100%



Water Systems Maintenance 

2021 Data:

▪ All the Monthly scheduled routine maintenance has been performed at 
all the water sites for the month of May.  

▪ No quarterly scheduled routine maintenance tasks were completed in 
May.  All remaining quarterly maintenance tasks will be completed in 
June 2021.  

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Monthly Scheduled Routine Maintenance

30 of 30              100%

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Quarterly Scheduled Routine Maintenance

15 of 30             -50%



Water Systems Maintenance 

2021 Data:

▪ The water maintenance crews have completed 21 PRV maintenance 
inspections during the month of May.  District crews have completed 97
out of 97 PRV inspections for the year.  

▪ Crews have had to complete 22 reactive work orders to date. In the 
month of May there was one completed. Reactive work orders are work 
orders created when an emergency or event outside of routine 
maintenance occurs. Our target goal is 10 or less reactive work orders 
per month.   

0

50

100

150

200

250

Monthly PRV Scheduled Routine Maintenance

95 of 95            100%

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Reactive Work Orders Completed

Target Actual

22 of 50           -56%



Wastewater Maintenance Update 

Wastewater Maintenance Report
• Wastewater Maintenance – The Wastewater Maintenance Staff 

continues to be working on main roads and trunk lines while they 
are short one employee.  

• Wastewater Pump Stations – The WWPS staff lost two pumps 
towards the end of May.  One at Chesterfield WWPS and the 
other at Warner WWPS.  This will have an impact on our 
redundancy, since there are longer lead times on parts for the 
pumps.     

• Pretreatment - Pretreatment efforts could pay off, since CVWRF 
agrees that the ferric sulfate had a significant impact on the total 
TSS load and concentration delivered to CVWRF.  They will 
continue to shut off the ferric sulfate station during the week of 
sampling.  

Failed Manhole Liner



Wastewater Maintenance Update 

Variance Description – We were without Unit 35 CCTV van for the entire month of May, but are still right on 
target for our 4-year CCTV inspection maintenance program

Variance Description – We made up some ground from the previous (Hotspot) month and are very close 
to being right on target for our 2-year cleaning program.

Variance Description – Remain right on target for Hotspots.Variance Description – 13 manhole inspections were performed during May, since they were in the 
same area as a cleaning area, so the crew killed two birds with one stone while they were there.

0.0

50.0

100.0

150.0

200.0

Collection System Cleaning

Target Actuals

55.3 Mi 1.75 %

0

20

40

60

80
Collection System CCTV

Target Actuals

31.8 Mi 1.82 %

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

Manhole Inspection 

Target Actuals

2,662 33.58 %

0
5

10
15
20
25

Collection System Hot Spot Cleaning

Target Actuals

10.7 Mi .06 %



Wastewater Maintenance Update 



Wastewater Maintenance Update 



Wastewater Maintenance Update 

28, 85%

4, 12%

1, 3%
0, 0%

1, 3%

FOG Program - April

Inspections Education Cleaning Notices Complete Cleaning Notices Incomplete

8

28

15 15

28

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n

s

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

Grease Interceptor Inspections - 2021

# Inspected Projected % Complete Actual % Complete



Wastewater Maintenance Update 

The surrounding area average BOD/TSS numbers come from 2020 data collected from the following entities:  South Valley Sewer District, South Davis 
Sewer District, Snyderville Basin Water Reclamation Facility, Timpanogos Special Service District, and Springville City. More Data is being collected to 
better understand where our sewer strength levels stand.

100

150

200

250

300

350

m
g/

L

BOD - Concentration

GHID BOD GHID 3 Year Average

Wasatch Front AVG BOD - 2020 CVWRF BOD - 2020

150

170

190

210

230

250

270

m
g/

L

TSS - Concentration

GHID TSS GHID 3 Year Average Wasatch Front AVG TSS - 2020 CVWRF TSS - 2020



Water Production -

866.26 784.51 775.04 854.15 

1,461.24 

2,664.33 

3,411.76 
3,283.39 

2,413.96 

1,162.02 

674.60 
796.45 732.00 

572.46 
438.95 

803.72 

1,835.98 

1,450.45 

0.00

500.00

1,000.00

1,500.00

2,000.00

2,500.00

3,000.00

3,500.00

4,000.00

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

A
C

R
E

 F
E

E
T

JVWCD TOTAL METER CONSUMPTION BY MONTH 

5 Year AVG Current Year 2021

31.53%

Percentage of contract used.
(as of 06/17/2021)



Water Production

*estimated 

69%

31%

2021 YTD PRODUCTION BY SOURCE

JVWCD GHID Wells

3%

17%

39%11%

23%

7%

2021 YTD WELL PRODUCTION

Well 1 Well 8 Well 12 Well 15 Well 16 Well 17



Water Production

.

0.00

200.00

400.00

600.00

800.00

1,000.00

1,200.00

1,400.00

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

A
C

R
E 

FE
ET

GHID Deep Wells

5 Year AVG 2020 2021

0.00

500.00

1000.00

1500.00

2000.00

2500.00

3000.00

3500.00

4000.00

4500.00

5000.00

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

A
C

R
E 

FE
ET

Combined Source Total Water Produced 

Total AVG Last 5 years 2020 2021



Well 1 Water Level

.



Well 8 Water Level

.



Well 12 Water Level

.

Well not in service



Well 14 Water Level

.

Well minimally used due to 
poor water quality. 



Well 15 Water Level

.



Well 16 Water Level

.

Bad level transmitter



Well 17 Water Level

.

Well not in service



Capital Projects Approval
20G-1: Building B Reroof

• Capital Project: Building E Storage/Office Expansion
• Consultant: EDA (Edwards Daniels Architects)
• Contractor: To be determined
• Design Progress: 100%
• Construction Progress: -
• Budget $1,120,000 (Building B Remodel)
• Original Construction: -
• Change Order %: -

Project Description: Replacement of the Building B Roof, which has failed. The
new roof will include a new PVC roof membrane, walkway pad, roof hatch
guardrail system, metal roof deck and insulation infill, mechanical curb, and
roof ladder. The Engineer’s estimate is $110,000.

Summary: The District posted an invitation to bid on the Utah Public
Procurement Place (U3P) and on the District’s website. A bid opening was held
on U3P on June 21 and three (3) bids were received.

RoofTek was deemed non-responsive because their proposed roof membrane
did not meet project specifications and did not receive approval prior to
bidding.

It is recommended that the second low bidder, North Face Roofing, Inc., be
awarded the construction contract. The consultant, EDA, has previous
experience working with North Face Roofing, Inc. and they have had positive
experiences working with them.

Approval Requested: Consider approval of construction contract with North
Face Roofing, Inc. for the 20G-1: Building B Reroof project in the amount of
$98,600.00.

1 North Face Roofing, Inc. $           98,600.00
2 Conwest, Inc. $           235,336.00
3 RoofTek Non-responsive



Capital Projects Approval
20E: Pioneer WWPS Replacement

Capital Project: Pioneer WWPS Replacement
Consultant: Bowen Collins & Associates, Inc.
Contractor: To be determined
Design Progress: 100%
Budget: $3,145,000.00
Original Construction: -

Project Description: Replacement of the existing 500 GPM Pioneer Wastewater Pump
Station located at 2250 South Constitution Boulevard with a new pump station to be
located at 2184 South Constitution Boulevard.

Summary: The District invited all prequalified contractors to bid on the project. A public 
bid opening was held on June 21 and four (4) bids were received from the following 
general contractors:

* Corrected bid amount

It is recommended that the apparent low bidder, COP Construction, LLC, and Option 1 be 
selected. It is recommended that Option 1 be selected based on the need for two force 
mains for redundancy and small difference in price between Option 1 and Option 2.

West Valley City has agreed to pay 60% ($204,312.00) for their portion of the work along 
the Brighton Canal. Based on this agreement, the District’s total cost will be 
$3,917,000.00. 

See attached recommendation for additional information. 

Approval Requested: Consider approval of a construction contract to COP Construction 
in the amount of $4,117,000.00 for the 20E: Pioneer WWPS Replacement Project.

CONTRACTOR
OPTION NO. 1

TWO FORCE MAINS
OPTION NO. 2

ONE FORCE MAIN
1 COP Construction, LLC $           4,117,000.00 $           3,991,900.00
2 Nelson Brothers Construction $           4,437,944.00 $           4,155,010.00

3 Corrio Construction, Inc. $           5,016,763.25* $           4,873,250.85*
4 VanCon, Inc. $           5,925,975.00 $           5,845,775.00



Capital Projects Approval
20E: Pioneer WWPS Replacement

Service Requested: Design and Construction Management
Capital Project: Pioneer WWPS Replacement
Consultant: Bowen Collins & Associates, Inc.
Design Progress: 100%
Budget: $3,145,000.00
Current Contract: -

Project Description: Replacement of the existing 500 GPM Pioneer Wastewater Pump
Station located at 2250 South Constitution Boulevard with a new pump station to be
located at 2184 South Constitution Boulevard.

Summary: During the completion of the design of the WWPS, there were modifications to
the project scope that required additional design time beyond what was originally
anticipated. This work included removal of the Constitution Blvd. bridge over the Brighton
Canal and additional geotechnical and final design services in the amount of $68,440.00.

In addition to this, the District is requesting construction management services from
Bowen Collins & Associates, Inc. for the project. This services include construction
inspection, submittal review, change order assistance, and project documentation in the
amount of $138,210.00.

It is recommended that the additional cost of $206,650.00 for design and construction
management services be approved for Bowen Collins & Associates, Inc.

West Valley City has agreed to pay 60% ($11,220.00) for their portion of the work along
the Brighton Canal. Based on this agreement, the Districts final additional cost will be
$195,430.00.

Approval Requested: Consider the approval of a contract amendment for Bowen Collins
& Associates in the amount of $206,650.00 for additional design efforts and
construction phase services for the 20E: Pioneer WWPS Replacement Project.



Capital Projects Status
20A&I: 3100 South to 4100 South Redwood Road Water and 
Sewer Project

• Capital Project: Redwood Road Pipeline Replacement (4100 South to
3100 South) & Valley Fair Mall Feedlines

• Pre-design: Horrocks Engineers
• Consultant: Bowen Collins & Associates
• Contractor: To be determined
• Design Progress: 1%
• Construction Progress: -
• Original Construction: -
• Current Contract: -
• Change Order %: -

Project Description: Replace aging distribution piping in Redwood Road and
construct a new sewer line running north to provide additional capacity for new
growth. The pipelines will be funded by the Utah SRF and sewer lines will be funded
by District impact fees.

Project Update: The design kickoff meeting was held on June 21. Utility 
investigations and surveying are in progress. The consultant plans to get bidding 
documents ready in early 2022 with construction anticipated to begin in March 
2022. Contractors will be prequalified to bid on this project. 

20B: Rushton Groundwater Treatment Plant

• Capital Project: Wells 1, 12, 17 Treatment Facility
• Consultant: J-U-B Engineers
• Contractor: To be determined
• Design Progress: 95%
• Construction Progress: -
• Original Construction: -
• Current Contract: -
• Change Order %: -

Project Description: A new water treatment facility to remove iron, manganese and
ammonia from Wells No. 1, 12 and 17 at the Well No. 12 site at 1490 West 3100
South.

Project Update: Final plan sets have been submitted to both West Valley City and
Utah Division of Drinking Water for review.

Final 3-D model.



20B-1: RGWTP Waterlines Project

• Capital Project: Wells 1, 12, 17 Treatment Facility
• Consultant: J-U-B Engineers
• Contractor: To be determined
• Design Progress: 100%
• Construction Progress: -
• Original Construction: -
• Current Contract: -
• Change Order %: -

Project Description: As part of the Rushton Groundwater Treatment Plant, piping
modifications are necessary in 3300 South and 3100 South.

Project Update: The project has been posted on the Utah Public Procurement Place
(U3P) and the bid opening is scheduled for July 7.

20D: Kent Booster Pump Station Replacement and Tank 
Purchase

• Capital Project: Tank Farm Booster Replacement/Tank
Purchase/Energy Improvements Project

• Consultant: Hansen, Allen & Luce
• Contractor: To be determined
• Design Progress: 85%
• Construction Progress: -
• Original Construction: -
• Current Contract: -
• Change Order %: -

Project Description: Replacement of the existing Kent Booster Pump Station at
Tank Farm (4400 South 4800 West), site piping replacements, and purchase of
two existing 5 MG Jordan Valley Water tanks.

Project Update: Working on updating plan sets for one tank purchase and
completing property purchase with JVWCD. Contractor pre-qualification
documents are posted on U3P and are due July 8th.

Capital Projects Status



20E: Pioneer WWPS Replacement

• Capital Project: Pioneer WWPS Replacement
• Consultant: Bowen Collins & Associates, Inc.
• Contractor: To be determined
• Design Progress: 100%
• Construction Progress: -
• Original Construction: -
• Current Contract: -
• Change Order %: -

Project Description: Replacement of the existing 500 GPM Pioneer Wastewater
Pump Station located at 2250 South Constitution Boulevard with a new pump
station to be located at 2184 South Constitution Boulevard.

Project Update: See Capital Projects Approval for more information.

20G: Building B Remodel/Addition

• Capital Project: Building E Storage/Office Expansion
• Consultant: EDA (Edwards Daniels Architects)
• Contractor: To be determined
• Design Progress: 65%
• Construction Progress: -
• Original Construction: -
• Current Contract: -
• Change Order %: -

Project Description: Upgrades/repair of the Building B, including bathroom and
kitchen remodel, and remodel of the mezzanine and/or addition.

Project Update: Project design is ongoing.

Conceptual rendering - Building B addition 
looking southwest

Capital Projects Status



20G-1: Building B Reroof

• Capital Project: Building E Storage/Office Expansion
• Consultant: EDA (Edwards Daniels Architects)
• Contractor: To be determined
• Design Progress: 100%
• Construction Progress: -
• Original Construction: -
• Current Contract: -
• Change Order %: -

Project Description: Repair of the Building B Roof. Repair will include a new PVC
roof membrane, walkway pad, roof hatch guardrail system, metal roof deck and
insulation infill, mechanical curb, and roof ladder.

Project Update: See Capital Projects Approval

Plan for roof

Capital Projects Status
20H: 4100 South Sewerline – 6000 West to 6400 West

• Capital Project: 4100 South Sewer – 6000 West to 6400 West
• Consultant: Jones & DeMille Engineering
• Contractor: Rolfe Excavating & Construction, Inc.
• Design Progress: 100%
• Construction Progress: 50%
• Original Construction: $921,733.72
• Current Contract: $921,733.72
• Change Order %: -

Project Description: The existing sewer system between 6000 West and 6800 West is
being abandoned to upsize the existing 8-inch and 10-inch RCP to a new 15-inch PVC
pipe.

Project Update: Crews have completed their work at the 6000 W intersection and are
over halfway complete with the 15-inch sewer line installation.

15-inch Sewer Pipe 
installation



Capital Projects Status
21A: Large Meter Replacements

• Capital Project: Meter Vault Upgrades
• Consultant: GHID
• Contractor: Beck Construction & Excavation, Inc.
• Design Progress: 100%
• Construction Progress: -
• Original Construction: $517,750.00
• Current Contract: $517,750.00
• Change Order %: -

Project Description: Remove existing water meters and replace with new 4-inch, 6-
inch, and 8-inch vaults at various locations in West Valley City. This is one of the
District’s annual recurring maintenance/replacement projects.

Project Update: It is anticipated that construction will begin in August.

21C: Kearns Interconnects along 4700 South

• Capital Project: Kearns Improvement District Emergency Interconnections
• Consultant: In-house
• Contractor: To be determined
• Design Progress: 100%
• Construction Progress: -
• Original Construction: -
• Current Contract: -
• Change Order %: -

Project Description: Kearns Improvement District has requested new emergency water
interconnects along 4700 South. GHID and KID have an existing interconnect at 6000
West and 4750 South.

Project Update: Working on acquiring materials for the two interconnects with Kearns
Improvement District.



Capital Projects Status
21D: Enterprise Resource Planning Software Replacement

• Capital Project: Incode v10 Upgrade
• Vendor: Tyler Technologies
• Implementation Prog.: 0%
• Current Contract: $67,748.00

Project Description: Replacement of the District’s Enterprise Resource Planning
(Financial) software to Incode v10 as Incode v9 is at the end of its useful life.

Project Update: The kick-off meeting is tentatively scheduled for November 2021.

I.T. Staff are currently working on implementing a new myCivic module which allows
customers to view billing, consumption, and history, and to pay their bill.

21F: SCADA Modernization Project

• Capital Project: SCADA Modifications/Upgrades
• Consultant: TBD
• Implementation Prog.: 1%
• Original Contract: -
• Current Contract: -

Project Description: Upgrades and modifications to the District’s existing Supervisory
Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system. This project will modernize the AVEVA
System but adding object-based tags and creating high-performance graphics, along
with upgrading aging and obsolete hardware.

Project Update: The project has begun.



21G: Manhole Rehabilitation Project

• Capital Project: Sewer Lining and Manhole Rehabilitation
• Consultant: GHID
• Contractor: -
• Design Progress: 90%
• Construction Progress: -
• Original Construction: -
• Current Contract: -
• Change Order %: -

Project Description: Rehabilitation of various existing sewer manholes by raising
manholes to grade and pouring concrete collars.

Project Update: Project design is ongoing.

21H: Well No. 16 Chlorinator

• Capital Project: Chlorine Generation Equip – Well No. 16
• Contractor: -
• Design Progress: 5%
• Construction Progress: -
• Original Construction: -
• Current Contract: -
• Change Order %: -

Project Description: The budget for this project was originally allocated toward Well
No. 1. After additional review of the well it was determined that the budget should
be reallocated toward Well No. 16. The Well No. 16 chlorination equipment has
reached its lifespan and the water demand from this well is higher than Well No. 1.
The new equipment will help the District avoid future maintenance and parts supply
issues.

Project Update: Working on finalizing project scope. The District will be soliciting
Request for Proposals (RFPs) from contractors to provide design and construction
services. It is anticipated that construction will begin early fall.

Capital Projects Status



Capital Projects Status
21I: Interceptor Vault Modification

• Capital Project: Interceptor Improvements
• Consultant: J-U-B Engineers
• Contractor: -
• Design Progress: 5%
• Construction Progress: -
• Original Construction: -
• Current Contract: -
• Change Order %: -

Project Description: Replace the lid of the main District interceptor vault at 1488 W.
3100 S. to improve maintenance access and better match new asphalt elevations.

Project Update: This project will be included as part of the Rushton Groundwater
Treatment Plant since it is located at the same site and is impacted by construction of
the new asphalt drive.

21J: GHID Headquarters Landscaping Phase 2

• Capital Project: Headquarters Landscaping Phase 2 (South End)
• Consultant: J-U-B Engineers
• Contractor: -
• Design Progress: 5%
• Construction Progress: -
• Original Construction: -
• Current Contract: -
• Change Order %: -

Project Description: Phase 2 landscaping will include landscape improvements along
the south side of the GHID Headquarter property. Priority locations are the pond,
southwest side along the wall and south entrance.

Project Update: Working on finalizing the project scope with the consultant.



Master Plan Update, Rate Study & Impact Fee Analysis Update

Project: Master Plan, Rate & Impact Fee Study & Long-Term Capital Facility Plan – Operations & Maintenance (Eng. Consulting) 
Consultant: Bowen, Collins & Associates
Progress: 40%
Budget: $290,000
Contract: $284,388

Project Description: In order to best determine rates and impact fees, it is necessary to complete an updated Master Plan (for both the Water and Wastewater systems) and a 
20-year Capital and Infrastructure Maintenance Plan. Following completion of the plans, the Consultant (or sub-consultant) will complete the Rate Study and Impact Fee 
Analysis. This project will be complete in time to set rates for 2021. 

Project Update: Consultant is finalizing Master Plans for both Water and Wastewater systems. 



Small Projects:

Water Innovation Center:

Project Description:  Modifying the old Well No. 7 pump house in Chesterfield to use 
as a pipe coupon exhibit and training area. Design and construction by District staff.

Project Update: The outer walls are complete. Interior furnishing is ongoing.

3425 West Water Line Replacement:

Project Description:  Replacement of an existing 4-inch cast iron waterline on a dead-
end street from 3540 South to approximately 3585 South. Design and construction by 
District staff.

Project Update: Construction is substantially complete. Asphalt restoration to be 
completed by the end of June.

Taylorsville-Bennion Improvement District Interlocal Agreement

Project Description: Formalize the interlocal agreement with TBID regarding shared 
utility service (i.e. GHID provides water service, TBID provides wastewater service). 

Project Update: The Interlocal agreement is being developed.

Thayn Drive Water Line Replacement:

Project Description:  Replacement of an existing 6-inch cast iron waterline from 4400 
West to 4800 West. Design and construction by District staff.

Project Update: The project design is 75% complete. Construction by District staff is 
expected to start in mid-July. 

Capital Projects Status



C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
M

ap



Engineering Report

Plan Review Updates
PROJECT NAME ADDRESS TYPE STATUS

1) BoxWorks Technologies Inc 2065 W Parkway Blvd Warehouse Addition Approved

2) BlueBlue Store Renovation 3601 S 2700 W Ste TC2 Tenant Improvement Approved

3) Teriyaki Grill 5567 W Highmarket Dr Tenant Improvement Approved

4) Krispy Kreme 3370 S 5600 W Commercial Approved

5) WVC Storm Drain Project
on Stanton Dr (4610 W) from 
Harbor St (3320 S) - 3100 S WVC Storm Drain Approved

6) Avisia Physical Therapy 3460 S Redwood Rd Tenant Improvement Approved

7) Erin Hills Townhomes 5507 W 3500 S Moved Water Meter Approved

8) Shiny Shell Car Wash 3521 S Caddy Hill Ln Commercial Approved

9) SLAC Logistics 2179 S Commerce Center Dr Tenant Improvement Approved

10)
Steward Health Care Medical Clinics 
(Hospital)

4133 W Pioneer Pkwy Ste 200, 
210 ,220 & 230 Commercial Approved

11) SLCO Pioneer Crossing Ph 1 1280 W Cultural Center Dr Park Resubmittal Required

12) WV Dermatology (Hospital) 4133 W Pioneer Pkwy Ste 130 Commercial Under Review



Water Quality Report

Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec.

Chlorine 2021 0.56 0.41 0.31 0.37 0.33

Fluoride 2021 0.69 0.69 0.69 0.66 0.66

Chlorine 3-yr Avg. 0.46 0.58 0.63 0.39 0.39 0.35 0.40 0.34 0.37 0.40 0.36 0.39

Fluoride 3-yr Avg. 0.69 0.72 0.57 0.59 0.66 0.70 0.69 0.66 0.66 0.62 0.55 0.67

Chlorine Min. 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

Fluoride Min. 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6

Chlor. & Fluor. Max 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1

Chlorine and Fluoride Residuals (mg/L)



Water Quality Report

Water Quality Complaint Locations – May

Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec.

Water Quality Complaints 6 20 71 109 14

Pressure Complaints 6 6 0 8 13

WQ 3-YR AVG. 59 14 43 68 37 32 62 37 25 27 23 19

Pressure 3-YR AVG. 6 6 8 14 15 28 23 19 7 9 7 7

Total 3-YR AVG. 65 19 51 82 53 60 85 56 32 36 30 26

25% AWWA Benchmark 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7

75% AWWA Benchmark 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Water Quality and Pressure Complaints


	(2)May 2021 Minutes
	(3)June JVWCD Update
	(4)June CVWRF Update
	(5)MA CONS FUNDING AGREEMENT_GHID_K3398_CB
	(6)Prop Tax Cert Rate Explanation for Board Packet - June 2021
	(7)Resolution_06-29-21
	(8)2021_05_Budget To Actual - May 2021 - New Accrual Bd
	(9)Check Report
	(10)New-June Water-Board Report
	(11)June_Wastewater Board Report
	(12)June 2021 Ops  Engineering Report

